
Agenda for a meeting of the Bradford West Area 
Committee to be held on THURSDAY 28 January 
2016 at 1800 in Committee Room 4, City Hall, Bradford

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE – COUNCILLORS
LABOUR BRADFORD INDEPENDENTS CONSERVATIVE

Amran Collector Sykes
Azam
Duffy
Engel
Shabir Hussain
Mohammad Shabbir
Shaheen

ALTERNATES:
Labour Bradford Independents
Akhtar Ahmed
Dunbar
Arshad Hussain
Imran Hussain
Lal
Mohammed
Swallow
Thirkill

NOTES:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed except if 

Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered by Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be respectful to the conduct of 
the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such as oral commentary) will not be 
permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes to record or film the meeting's 
proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact who will provide guidance and ensure 
that any necessary arrangements are in place. Those present who are invited to make spoken 
contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.

 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the officer 
named at the foot of that agenda item.  

 Light refreshments will be provided for Members of the Committee only.
 Decisions on items marked * are not Executive functions and may not be called in under 

Paragraph 8.7 of Part 3E of the Constitution.

From: To:
Dermot Pearson (Interim City Solicitor)
Agenda Contact:  Asad Shah
Phone: 01274 432280
E-Mail: asad.shah@bradford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



Ward
A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1. ALTERNATE MEMBERS (Standing Order 34)

The Interim City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are attending the meeting 
in place of appointed Members.  

2. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 
(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted members on matters to be 
considered at the meeting. The disclosure must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes apparent to the member during 
the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in discussion and voting unless the 
interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would call into 
question their compliance with the wider principles set out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable 
pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must not vote in 
decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations, and must disclose at the 
meeting that this restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not disclosable pecuniary 
interests but which they consider should be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council Standing Order 44.

3. MINUTES

Recommended – 

That the minutes of the meetings held on 24 June, 16 September, 21 October and 18 
November 2015 be signed as correct records (previously circulated).

(Asad Shah - 01274 432280)

4. INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by contacting the person 
shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports and background papers may be restricted.  



Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper should be made to the 
relevant Director or Assistant Director whose name is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if you wish to appeal.  

(Asad Shah - 01274 432280)

5. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

To hear questions from electors within the District on any matter which is the responsibility of the 
Panel.  

Questions must be received in writing by the City Solicitor in Room 111, City Hall, Bradford, 
by mid-day on Tuesday 26 January 2016.  

(Asad Shah - 01274 432280)

B. BUSINESS ITEMS

6. PETITION RELATING TO TRAFFIC MATTERS ON ALTAR DRIVE Heaton

The report of the Strategic Director, Regeneration (Document “O”) considers a petition requesting 
that the Council introduce various measures to reduce traffic flows and speed and to improve road 
safety on Altar Drive, Heaton.

Recommended –

(1) That no action be taken on the requests made by the residents of Altar Drive. 

(2) That the petitioners are informed accordingly.

(Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee)

(Mark Gillingham – 01274 437645)

7. OBJECTIONS RECEIVED TO THE City
TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER FOR Heaton
WAITING RESTRICTIONS ON VARIOUS Manningham
ROADS IN THE BRADFORD WEST CONSTITUENCY

The report of the Strategic Director, Regeneration (Document “P”) considers objections and 
suggested modifications to the proposed Traffic Regulation Order on various roads in the Bradford 
West Constituency.

Recommended –

(1) That the objections to Ash Mount, Denby Street, Grantham Road, Haworth Road, and 
Wilmer Road be overruled.



(2) That the proposed waiting restriction on Spencer Road be amended to 8am to 6pm 
waiting limited to 1 hour no return within 1 hour except permit holders. That any 
valid objections to the revised proposals be reported to this back to the Bradford 
West Area Committee for their consideration. If there are no valid objections the 
Order be sealed and implemented.

(3) That the request for additional parking on White Abbey Road be noted by the 
Bradford West Area Committee.

(4) That the objections to Heaton Road and Retford Place be upheld.

(5) That the draft Traffic Regulation Order be modified as shown on drawing No.s 
R/S/BW/102702/CON-25B attached as Appendix 2 and R/S/BW/102702/CON-28C 
attached as Appendix 3 to Document “P”.

(6) That the modified Traffic Regulation Order be sealed and implemented.

(7) That the objectors be informed accordingly.

(Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee)

(Mark Gillingham – 01274 437645)

8. STREET DEDICATION TO HONOUR THE LATE Thornton &
FORMER COUNCILLOR AND LORD MAYOR Allerton
OF BRADFORD VALERIE BINNEY

This report of the Development Manager (Document “Q”) considers the proposal to name a new 
street after the “Late Former Councillor and Lord Mayor of Bradford Valerie Binney”.

A Developer and Councillor Malcolm Sykes would like the dedication to honour the “Late former 
Councillor and Lord Mayor of Bradford Valerie Binney” by registering the new street in her name 
for the Chevet Mount Development at Allerton Lane Bradford.

Recommended –

To approve the proposed street name “Valerie Binney Drive” for the residential 
development 15/00326/S3 Land West of Chevet Mount Bradford, as outlined in Document 
“Q”.

(Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee)

(Adrian Walker – 01274 431237)

9. DISTRICT PLAN AND COUNCIL PLAN DEVELOPMENT All Wards in
Bradford West

The report of the Assistant Director, Policy, Programmes and Change (Document “R”) provides a 
summary of the approach taken in the development of the District Plan and Council Plan, and 
seeks member input at the drafting stage. The District Plan will identify how partner organisations 
across the district will contribute to the delivery of our shared outcomes.  The Council Plan will 
identify the Council’s contribution to the District Plan. 



Recommended –

(1) That Area Committee Members provide their views on the questions listed in section 
3.4, as outlined in Document “R”.

(2) That Area Committee Members may provide suggestions of questions to ask through 
the ongoing public engagement activity, as outlined in section 3.15 in Document “R”.

(3) That Area Committee Members comment on the key aspects of the ward plans that 
should be reflected in the Council and District Plans.

(4) That Area Committee Members provide their thoughts on how the ward plans and 
their development can be more systematically connected to the Council and District 
Plans as outlined in section 3.18 in Document “R”.

(Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee)

(Kathryn Jones – 01274 433364)

agenda 15-16\AG28JanAG

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



This page is intentionally left blank



Bradford West Area Committee 

 

 

Report of the Strategic Director, Regeneration to the 
meeting of Bradford West Area Committee to be held on 
28 January 2016 

O 
 
 

Subject:   
 
PETITION RELATING TO TRAFFIC MATTERS 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report considers a petition requesting that the Council introduce various 
measures to reduce traffic flows and speed and to improve road safety on Altar 
Drive, Heaton. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ward 12 Heaton

Mike Cowlam 
Strategic Director Regeneration 

Portfolio:   
 
Regeneration, Economy & Sustainability 
 

Report Contact:  Chris Bedford 
Phone: (01274) 437645 
E-mail: chris.bedford@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Environment & Waste Management 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1/



Bradford West Area Committee 

2 
28/01/2016 

MAG 

1.0 SUMMARY 

1.1 This report considers a petition requesting that the Council introduce various 
measures to reduce traffic flows and speed and to improve road safety on Altar 
Drive, Heaton. 

2.0 BACKGROUND 

2.1 Petition – Altar Drive, Heaton (27 signatures) 

2.1.1. The petitioners are concerned that traffic on Altar Drive is on the increase; vehicles 
use the road as a rat run and often travel at speed bringing danger to children and 
residents. They are also concerned that the junctions at either end of Altar Drive are 
accident hotspots or potential accident hotspots due to parked vehicles blocking 
sight lines. There are various types of vehicle using Altar Drive and all these add to 
the congestion throughout the day, as a consequence, getting in / out of driveways 
is becoming more difficult. The petitioners are also concerned that the poor street 
lighting increases the risk of potential accidents. The road surface is reported to be 
uneven and potholed which adds to the risk of potential accidents. 

2.1.2. The petitioners have requested the following measures: - 

• A closure of Altar Drive at its junction with Heaton Park Drive. 

• Speed calming measures restricting traffic speed to 10mph and it should be 
sign posted. Speed humps are not favoured by the residents. They are not 
considered appropriate due to the width of the road. Speed cameras could be 
used as enforcement. 

• Improve the road surface and street lighting. 

• Gate Altar Drive at both sides and make it a gated community. 

2.1.3. Altar Drive is a narrow residential street. All properties have off street parking. On 
street parking does take place and due to the narrowness of the carriageway 
parked vehicles often block the footway to allow single file traffic to pass.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2



Bradford West Area Committee 

3 
28/01/2016 

MAG 

Two traffic surveys have been carried out on Altar Drive. The first was undertaken in 2013. 
The second was more recent in November 2015. The results of the surveys are as follows: 
- 

27 June 2013 – 4 July 2013 

Direction Mean 
speed 
(mph) 

85th’ile 
speed 
(mph)* 

Maximum 
Speed 
recorded 
(mph) 

Average 
daily 
traffic flow 

Maximum 
am peak 
flow 
(08:15-
09:15) 

Maximum 
pm peak 
flow 
(15:15-
16:15) 

North 
bound 

19.2 24.1 37 

South 
bound 

19.4 24.5 39 
591 63 79 

 

27 November 2015 – 2 December 2015 

Direction Mean 
speed 
(mph) 

85th’ile 
speed 
(mph)* 

Maximum 
Speed 
recorded 
(mph) 

Average 
daily 
traffic flow 

Maximum 
am peak 
flow 
(09:15-
10:15) 

Maximum 
pm peak 
flow 
(16:30-
17:30) 

North 
bound 

18.9 23.8 40 

South 
bound 

19.4 24.5 39 
570 86 76 

*The speed at or below which 85% of vehicles are travelling. 

The results show that the mean speeds and 85%’ile speeds are low and have not 
changed significantly over the two year period between the surveys. The overall daily 
traffic flow has reduced, although the morning peak flow has increased slightly. The 
accident statistics for the most recent 5 year period have also been studied and 
records show there have been no injury accidents during this time. 

2.1.4. The petitioners have requested the closure of Altar Drive at its junction with Heaton 
Park Drive. A turning area could not be incorporated into the closure due to the width 
of Alter Drive. This would present problems for refuse collections and deliveries as 
these vehicles would have to reverse some distance to a suitable area to turn round. 
A closure would also have a knock on effect on residents of Heaton Park Road and 
Garden Lane. A closure would therefore require the residents of these roads to also 
agree to such measures. 

2.1.5. With regard to vehicles parking at the junctions at each end of Altar Drive; it is not 
usual practice to provide yellow lines in residential areas. This adversely affects the 
parking needs of residents and their visitors. Due to the processes involved in 
promoting a Traffic Regulation Order; with the legal requirement to advertise and 

Page 3



Bradford West Area Committee 

4 
28/01/2016 

MAG 

invite objections, the implementation of yellow lines would only be successful if all of 
the residents were in agreement. 

 

2.1.6. With reference to the condition of the road surface, minor repairs on Altar Drive have 
been carried out and it is currently in a serviceable condition. The list of highways 
schemes in need of re-surfacing currently consists of around 270 roads throughout 
the district and with limited budgets only those that are deemed to be of the highest 
priority will be recommended for a future resurfacing scheme. 

2.1.7. Gates would not be considered on a residential street or any other main access route 
to properties. They would only be considered in the most severe cases where crime 
or antisocial behaviour takes place and then only on back streets or alley ways. 

2.1.8. The criteria for safety cameras are 4No. killed or seriously injured casualties over the 
most recent 5 year period. Altar Drive does not meet these criteria. 

2.1.9. The low traffic speeds and limited potential benefits in terms of casualty reduction 
means that traffic measures cannot be justified on Altar Drive at the present time. 

3.0 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

3.1 The local ward members have been consulted and any comments they make will be 
available at the meeting. 

3.2 Garden Lane is a residential street that runs parallel to Altar Drive therefore any 
restrictions to traffic on Altar Drive would have an impact on Garden Lane. 

4.0 FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 

4.1 There are no direct financial or resource implications arising from this report. If 
members resolve to add this request to the list of potential future schemes, 
consideration of funding implications will be given when the next scheme programme 
selection report is presented. 

5.0 RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

5.1 There are no significant risks arising from this report. 

6.0 LEGAL APPRAISAL 

6.1 There are no specific issues arising from this report. The course of action proposed is 
in general accordance with the Councils power as Highway Authority. 

7.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

7.1. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

There are no issues arising from the Council’s Equality & Diversity Strategy. 

Page 4



Bradford West Area Committee 

5 
28/01/2016 

MAG 

There are no issues arising from the Initial Equality Impact Assessment. 

 

7.2. SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 

There are no significant Sustainability implications arising from this report. 

7.3. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 

There is no impact on the Council's own and the wider District's carbon footprint and 
emissions from other greenhouse gasses arising from this report. 

7.4. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

There are no community safety implications of this report. 

7.5. HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 

None 

7.6. TRADE UNION 

None 

7.7. WARD IMPLICATIONS 

Thornton and Allerton ward members have been consulted on this petition. 

7.8. AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  

None 

8.0 NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 

None 

9.0 OPTIONS 

9.1. That no action be taken on the requests made by the residents of Altar Drive. 

9.2. That the request to close Altar Drive be added to the Bradford West Area 
Committee’s list of potential schemes for inclusion in a future Safer Roads Schemes 
Programme subject to funding being available. 

9.3. Members may propose a different course of action to those listed and, in that case, 
will receive appropriate guidance from officers. 

10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

10.1. That no action be taken on the requests made by the residents of Altar Drive. 

Page 5



Bradford West Area Committee 

6 
28/01/2016 

MAG 

10.2. That the petitioners are informed accordingly 

11.0 APPENDICES 

11.1. Appendix 1 Altar Drive, Heaton – Petition 

11.2. Appendix 2 Altar Drive, Heaton  – Location Plan 

12.0 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

12.1. none 

Page 6



APPENDIX 1 

7 

Page 7



APPENDIX 1 

8 

Page 8



APPENDIX 2 

9 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Report of the Strategic Director, Regeneration to the 
meeting of Bradford West Area Committee to be held on 
28 January 2016 

P 
 
 

Subject:   
 
OBJECTIONS RECEIVED TO THE TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER FOR WAITING 
RESTRICTIONS ON VARIOUS ROADS IN THE BRADFORD WEST CONSTITUENCY 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report considers objections and suggested modifications to the proposed 
Traffic Regulation Order on various roads in the Bradford West Constituency. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ward 7 City 
          12 Heaton 
          19 Manninhgam 

Mike Cowlam 
Strategic Director Regeneration 

Portfolio:   
 
Regeneration, Economy & Sustainability 
 

Report Contact:  Chris Bedford 
Phone: (01274) 437645 
E-mail: chris.bedford@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Environment & Waste Management 

 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2/



Bradford West Area Committee 
 

2 
28/01/2016 

MAG 

1.0 SUMMARY 

1.1. This report considers objections and suggested modifications to the proposed Traffic 
Regulation Order on various roads in the Bradford West Constituency. 

2.0 BACKGROUND 

2.1. At its meeting on the 23 April 2014 this committee approved as part of its Safer 
Roads Programme, a scheme to introduce a Traffic Regulation Order on various 
roads throughout the Bradford West Constituency. 

2.2. The order has been promoted to resolve a number of requests for small areas of 
existing waiting restrictions to be amended or new restrictions to be introduced. The 
requests have been raised by local residents or businesses that have problems with 
on street parking, gaining access to premises or parking for customers. 

2.3. The Traffic Regulation Order was formally advertised between the 23 October and 13 
November 2015. At the same time consultation letters and plans were delivered to 
residents and business affected by the proposals. This resulted in objections to Ash 
Mount, Denby Street, Grantham Road, Haworth Road, Heaton Road, Retford Place, 
Spencer Road and Wilmer Road. Letters of support were also received for Hazelhurst 
Road and Hazelhurst Brow and Spencer Road. There have also been requests to 
modify the proposals on Lower Kipping Lane and Hazelhurst Road. Plans of the 
proposals that have received objections are attached as Appendix 1. 

2.4. A summary of the points of objection and corresponding officer comments is 
tabulated below: - 

Objectors concerns Officer comments 
Ash Mount 
(Drawing No. R/S/BW/102702/CON-1B) 
Objectors 16 
Residents of Great Horton Road who live 
near to Ash Mount use Ash Mount for 
additional parking. Using Ash Mount has no 
impact on the flow of traffic on Great Horton 
Road and has removed parked vehicles 
from Great Horton Road thus easing 
congestion. 
The increase in the number of restaurants 
and takeaways, and the Sunday market at 
Cannon Mills has meant on street parking is 
becoming more difficult for the objectors 
and the introduction of the waiting 
restrictions on Ash Mount will put more 
pressure on surrounding streets. Ash Mount 
is also used for parking by gardeners at the 
local allotments and attendees of local 
businesses. The introduction of parking 
restrictions will impact on Great Horton 

Ash Mount 
 
 
The officer appreciates the concerns of the 
objectors regarding the lack of convenient 
on street parking in the area and the 
problems that parking on Great Horton 
Road may cause. However complaints have 
been made about vehicles parking on Ash 
Mount close to its junction with Great 
Horton Road. This makes it difficult for 
vehicles to turn in to Ash Mount. It is 
therefore proposed to introduce a no waiting 
at any time restriction (double yellow lines) 
on just one side of Ash Mount for a distance 
of 10 metres (approximately 2 car spaces) 
from Great Horton Road. This short section 
of double yellow lines will help drivers 
access Ash Mount by prohibiting vehicles 
parking close to the junction. 
Letters have been sent to the objectors 

Page 12



Bradford West Area Committee 
 

3 
28/01/2016 

MAG 

Road, could possibly lead to confrontations 
between neighbours and increase the risk 
of accidents. 
It is suggested that something is put in 
place to give priority to local residents. 

explaining the proposals in more detail and 
6 of the objectors have withdrawn their 
objection. 
 

Denby Street 
(Drawing No. R/S/BW/102702/CON-20A) 
Objectors 11 
The objectors have not given any valid 
objection to the proposals however they 
have highlighted a new area for parking on 
White Abbey Road. 

Denby Street 
 
 
Vehicles parked on White Abbey Road at 
the location suggested will obstruct sight 
lines for drivers leaving Denby Street and 
potentially make turning manoeuvres more 
dangerous at the junction. It is therefore 
considered that their suggestion is not a 
safe proposal. 

Grantham Road 
(Drawing No. R/S/BW/102702/CON-6A) 
Objectors 1 
The objector condemns any introduction of 
yellow lines and states that the Grantham 
community people are against any double 
or single yellow lines in Grantham Road and 
surroundings. 

Grantham Road 
 
 
The proposal to remove one parking space 
and replace it with a no waiting at any time 
restriction on one side of Grantham Road at 
its junction with Laisteridge Lane is being 
promoted in response to complaints that the 
current parking situation reduces Grantham 
Road to one lane. Conflict arises when a 
vehicle turns into this road as one is trying 
to exit. The proposal should help to stop 
these conflicts from occurring and provide a 
safe area for drivers to wait while others 
pass. 

Haworth Road 
(Drawing No. R/S/BW/102702/CON-32A) 
Objections 1 
The objector has never come across any 
difficulties whilst driving onto Haworth Road 
from Heather Grove. The objector strongly 
believes that he and his neighbours will be 
inconvenienced if double yellow lines are 
introduced. It would make more sense to 
enforce time regulations of when you can 
and cannot park vehicles. 

Haworth Road 
 
 
The proposal to introduce waiting 
restrictions at the junction of Haworth Road 
and Heather Grove has been promoted 
following a petition from residents of 
Heather Grove. This Committee considered 
the petition and resolved that the option to 
prohibit waiting at the junction of Haworth 
Road and Heather Grove be fast-tracked for 
implementation. 

Heaton Road 
(Drawing No. R/S/BW/102702/CON-21A) 
Objectors 1 
The objector is concerned that the removal 
of the double yellow line from outside his 
shop will affect his business. Parked cars 

Heaton Road 
 
 
The officer sympathises with the objector. It 
is therefore recommended that the waiting 
restrictions adjacent to his property remain 

Page 13



Bradford West Area Committee 
 

4 
28/01/2016 

MAG 

will block the view to his shop window and 
have a negative affect on his business. 

in place. 

Retford Place 
(Drawing No. R/S/BW/102702/CON-5A) 
Objectors 1 
The objector is concerned that the removal 
of the double yellow lines from the side of 
their property will allow vehicles to park and 
obstruct access to their business. 

Retford Place 
 
 
The officer agrees that the removal of the 
waiting restrictions at this location will cause 
more difficulties for the objectors business. 
It is therefore recommended that the 
existing waiting restrictions remain in place. 

Spencer Road 
(Drawing No. R/S/BW/102702/CON-8A) 
Objectors 10 
The objectors oppose the plans on various 
grounds which will infringe the community 
rather than benefit them. There are too 
many to list in one brief letter. As local 
residents they reject the plans and any 
suggestions they are being implemented for 
their benefit. 

Spencer Road 
 
 
The proposed restrictions have been 
promoted because local businesses are 
concerned that the parking spaces on 
Spencer Road near Horton Grange Road 
are used for long stay parking and there are 
no spaces for their customers or 
themselves. However parking in the area is 
at a premium and residents of adjoining 
streets sometimes find it difficult to park 
outside their properties and so use Spencer 
Road for additional parking. 
The time period for when the limited waiting 
restriction is proposed to be in force may be 
amended to between 8am to 6pm. This 
would then allow the objectors and their 
neighbours to park during the evening and 
through the night. 

Wilmer Road 
(Drawing No. R/S/BW/102702/CON-17A) 
Objectors 1 
The objector is opposing the proposal to 
make Wilmer Road ‘no waiting’ as currently 
the residents of Firth Road and Milford 
Place have no place to park their cars in the 
evening. This is due to mainly visiting traffic 
to a Mosque on Heaton Road. 

Wilmer Road 
 
 
The proposed waiting restrictions are 
located at the junction of Wilmer Road and 
Park View Road over 200m from Milford 
Place and Firth Road. The restrictions are 
proposed for one corner of the junction and 
will extend along each road for a distance of 
10 metres. 
Wilmer Road and Park View Road are part 
of a bus route and at times it has been 
reported that buses have problems 
negotiating the left turn From Wilmer Road 
into Park View Road. The proposed double 
yellow lines will keep this corner clear of 
parked vehicles and assist buses turning at 
the junction. 

Page 14



Bradford West Area Committee 
 

5 
28/01/2016 

MAG 

 
 
2.5. During the advertising period letters of support were received for Hazelhurst Road / 

Hazelhurst Brow (3No.) and Spencer Road (1No.). 

2.6. There have also been two requests to modify the Traffic Regulation Order in so far as 
adding an additional length of no waiting at any time restriction on Lower Kipping 
Lane as shown on drawing R/S/BW102702/CON-25B attached as Appendix 2 and to 
extend the proposed waiting restrictions on Hazelhurst Road as shown on drawing 
R/S/BW102702/CON-28C attached as Appendix 3. Two consultation letters were 
sent to residents / businesses directly affected by the modification on Lower Kipping 
Lane which resulted in one letter supporting the proposed change. The other 
consultee did not reply. Two consultation letters were also sent to residents on 
Hazelhurst Road regarding the proposed changes. Two replies were received to 
support the modification although only one of the replies was from a consultee. 

 
3.0 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

3.1. Local ward members and the emergency services were consulted on the original proposals. 
No objections were received. 

4.0 FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 

4.1. The cost of the proposals will be met from the Safer Roads Budget. 

5.0 RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

5.1. There are no significant risks arising from this report. 

6.0 LEGAL APPRAISAL 

6.1. There are no specific issues arising from this report. The course of action proposed is 
in general accordance with the Councils power as Highway Authority. 

7.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

7.1. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

There are no issues arising from the Council’s Equality & Diversity Strategy. 

7.2. SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 

There are no significant Sustainability implications arising from this report. 

7.3. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 

There is no impact on the Council's own and the wider District's carbon footprint and 
emissions from other greenhouse gases arising from this report. 

 

Page 15



Bradford West Area Committee 
 

6 
28/01/2016 

MAG 

7.4. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

The introduction of some of the waiting restrictions in the Order will be beneficial in 
terms of road safety. 

7.5. HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 

None 

7.6. TRADE UNION 

None 

7.7. WARD IMPLICATIONS 

Ward members have been consulted on the advertised Traffic Regulation Order. 

7.8. AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  

The implementation of the scheme supports priorities within the Bradford West Area 
Committee Action Plan. 

8.0 NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 

None 

9.0 OPTIONS 

9.1. That the objections to Ash Mount, Denby Street, Grantham Road, Haworth Road, 
and Wilmer Road be overruled. That the proposed waiting restriction on Spencer 
Road be amended to 8am to 6pm waiting limited to 1 hour no return within 1 hour 
except permit holders and that the local residents and businesses of Spencer Road 
be consulted on the revised proposal. That the objections to Heaton Road and 
Retford Place be upheld and due to no objections being received from the 
consultation exercise carried out for the proposed modifications to Hazelhurst Road 
and Lower Kipping Lane the Order be amended, sealed and implemented. 

9.2. Councillors may propose an alternative course of action. 

10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

10.1. That the objections to Ash Mount, Denby Street, Grantham Road, Haworth Road, 
and Wilmer Road be overruled. 

10.2. That the proposed waiting restriction on Spencer Road be amended to 8am to 6pm 
waiting limited to 1 hour no return within 1 hour except permit holders. That any valid 
objections to the revised proposals be reported to this Committee for their 
consideration. If there are no valid objections the Order be sealed and implemented. 

10.3. That the request for additional parking on White Abbey Road Be noted by this 
Committee. 

Page 16



Bradford West Area Committee 
 

7 
28/01/2016 

MAG 

10.4. That the objections to Heaton Road and Retford Place be upheld. 

10.5. That the draft Traffic Regulation Order be modified as shown on drawing No.s 
R/S/BW/102702/CON-25B attached as Appendix 2 and R/S/BW/102702/CON-28C 
attached as Appendix 3. 

10.6. That the modified Traffic Regulation Order be sealed and implemented. 

10.7. That the objectors be informed accordingly. 

 

11.0 APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 - drawings showing the proposals that have received objections. 

Appendix 2 – drawing R/S/BW/102702/CON-25B. 

Appendix 3 - drawing R/S/BW/102702/CON-28C. 

12.0 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

12.1. none 

Page 17



APPENDIX 1 

8 

Page 18



APPENDIX 1 

9 

Page 19



APPENDIX 1 

10 

Page 20



APPENDIX 1 

11 

Page 21



APPENDIX 1 

12 

Page 22



APPENDIX 1 

13 

Page 23



APPENDIX 1 

14 

Page 24



APPENDIX 1 

15 

Page 25



APPENDIX 1 

16 

Page 26



APPENDIX 2 

17 

Page 27



APPENDIX 3 

18 

 Page 28



 

 

Development Manager Report Development Services 
for the meeting of the Bradford Area Committee to be 
held 28 January 2016 City Hall Bradford 

Q 
 

i:\sec-template\new stds\report.dot 

Subject: Street Dedication to Honour the Late Former Councillor and 
Lord Mayor of Bradford Valerie Binney 
 
To name the new street in the Chevet Mount Development Allerton Lane Bradford as 
“Valerie Binney Drive” 
 
Application Number 15/00326/S3 
 

Summary Statement: 
 

This report considers the proposal to name the new street after the “Late Former 
Councillor and Lord Mayor of Bradford Valerie Binney” 
 
The Chief Executive Kersten England and Leader of the Councillor David Green have 
been consulted and no objections received 
 
The Developer Stephen Walkden and Councillor Malcolm Sykes would like the dedication 
to honour the “Late former Councillor and Lord Mayor of Bradford Valerie Binney” by 
registering the new street in her name for the Chevet Mount Development at Allerton Lane 
Bradford 
 
 

Ward: Thornton and Allerton

  
Chris Eaton 
Development Manager – Development 
Management 

Portfolio:   
 
 
 

Report Contact:  Adrian Walker 
Phone: (01274) 431237 

E-mail: addressing@bradford.gov.uk 

Improvement Area:   
 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 3/



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 
 
 

 2

1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Street Name “Valerie Binney Drive” to be dedicated to the Late Former 

Councillor and Lord Mayor of Bradford Valerie Binney who served the community 
and was an ambassador for Bradford 
 
Exerts from the T&A Bradford 
Councillor Valerie Binney (Con, Thornton and Allerton) received the Jane Tomlinson 
Award for Courage at the annual Yorkshire Women of Achieve-ment awards. She 
then went on to pick up the winner-of-winners prize at the end 
 
She was also nominated for the honour, which dates back to Medieval times, by her 
good friend and chairman of the Yorkshire Society Keith Madeley and was awarded 
Freedom of the City of London 
 
To get the Freedom of the City, recipients have to be nominated by a member of 
one of London's Liveries which in ancient times gave business people the right to 
trade in the city. 
 
Mr Madeley, a Freemason and member of the Woolman's Livery, said: "Valerie is a 
wonderful lady who would do anything for Bradford. 
 
"She's a fantastic ambassador for our city. It's a personal honour for her and an 
honour for Bradford." 
 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The site is being developed by Stephen Walkden as a residential site; 50 Bed Care 

Home and 42 sheltered dwellings and he first suggested Valerie Binney’s name for 
his development 

  
2.2 Councillor Malcolm Sykes also wishes to honour the Late Former Councillor and 

Lord Mayor of Bradford Valerie Binney by naming the street “Valerie Binney Drive” 
 

2.3  
 

Cllr Malcolm Sykes has submitted the Obituary in support of a decision to approve 
the allocation of “Valerie Binney Drive” as the new street name: 
 
" Late Councillor and Lord Mayor of Bradford Valerie Binney " 

 
Obituary -Valerie Binney. I was very sorry to learn of the death of Valerie Binney, a 
great servant of the Conservative Party in various capacities, notably as the 
Conservative Party Agent for Bradford, a Bradford City Councillor and Lord Mayor of 
Bradford in 2005/2006. 
 
Val Binney came into politics through the Conservative Political Centre (CPC), the 
predecessor to the present Conservative Policy Forum. I was lucky to be a 
colleague of Val when we were involved in Yorkshire Area CPC during the 1990s. I 
joined the Yorkshire Area CPC General Purposes Committee shortly after the 1992 
General Election, was elected as Treasurer in 1993, then Secretary of 1994. Val 
was a member of the General Purposes Committee throughout my involvement with 
Yorkshire Area CPC, and served a period as Vice Chairman of Yorkshire Area CPC. 
Throughout this period Val was the professional Conservative Party Agent for Page 30



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 
 
 

 3

Bradford but undertook her duties for Yorkshire Area CPC in an entirely voluntary 
capacity. 
 
During my tenure as Secretary of Yorkshire Area CPC, Val was involved in the 
process of despatching minutes and agendas. This process serves as a reminder of 
a different age. I owned no computer or word processing facilities until sometime 
after I was first elected as Secretary of Yorkshire Area CPC. I wrote what some 
colleagues considered to be excessively lengthy minutes by hand. Val then typed 
the minutes, and despatched them by post to members of the General Purposes 
Committee. Latterly , when I acquired a word processor, then a computer, I took 
over the typing of the minutes but Val was still responsible for the photocopying and 
despatch of the minutes (the use of e mail did not become widespread until 
sometime after Yorkshire Area CPC was abolished).. Sometimes, Val produced the 
minutes in the form of a small booklet! 
 
Val was always keen to help members of the Young Conservatives and 
Conservative Students (no Conservative Future in those days). Val notably 
encouraged a Bradford University Student, Gavin Williamson to become involved in 
Yorkshire Area CPC and join the General Purposes Committee. Gavin Williamson is 
now a Conservative MP and the Parliamentary Private Secretary to the Prime 
Minister. Val was also keen to offer help and advice to other young party members 
who served on the General Purposes Committee. 
 
In 1998, Val donated a cup for what was intended to be an Annual Yorkshire Wide 
Debating Competition to be organised by Yorkshire Area CPC. Sadly, this was 
competed for only once before Yorkshire Area CPC was abolished later that year. 
Following the abolition of Yorkshire Area CPC, I made a number of efforts to revive 
the competition, but these proved unsuccessful as there was no organisation to 
assist with the burdens associated with holding the event. 
 
The 1998 Party Reforms sadly resulted in the abolition of Yorkshire Area CPC. The 
Conservative Party had been heavily defeated by Labour in the 1997 General 
Election, and there was a prevailing dogma that if Yorkshire Area CPC, and other 
similar organisations were abolished, this would somehow result in additional 
campaigning activities which would in turn restore the Conservative Party to power. 
We now know that events did not turn out as those planning the 1998 Reforms 
envisaged. The abolition of Yorkshire Area CPC meant that the important work 
which we did in encouraging young activists and giving them opportunities which 
they would not otherwise have. It falls to those of us who are currently involved in 
Yorkshire and Humber CPF to revive and implement this ethos. Val told me that in 
her own submission to the consultation process relating to the 1998 Party Reforms 
that organisations such as Yorkshire Area CPC should continue in existence. I 
remember a conversation I had with Val several years after the abolition of 
Yorkshire Area CPC in which she asked how much additional campaigning had 
taken place as a result of the abolition of Yorkshire Area CPC. 
 
Val acted as the Election Agent for Iain Duncan Smith when he was the candidate 
for Bradford West at the 1987 General Election. She had served as a Bradford 
Councillor for Toller Ward between 1982 and 1986. Val was elected as a Councillor 
for Thornton Ward in 1999 shortly before her retirement as the Conservative Party 
Agent for Bradford. She served as a Bradford Councillor until May 2014 and as Lord 
Mayor of Bradford in 2005/6. Coincidentally, David Hopkins, who was the last 
Chairman of Yorkshire Area CPC, served as Mayor of Wakefield at the same time. Page 31



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 
 
 

 4

The Conservative Party has lost a great servant. I am sure all those who knew Val 
will join me in offering condolences to friends and family. 
 

3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The naming of a new street after any individual is a sensitive matter, to be given 

very serious consideration, and is usually only approved in exceptional 
circumstances, it is sensible to provide an alternative suggestion in the event that 
the Committee does not approve this proposal. In this particular case, should the 
Committee not be minded to approve this proposal; 
 
The name “Yarm Drive” will be the allocated street name following consultation with 
the Ward Councillors as part of the current Policy and Protocol 
 
The Family of the Late Former Councillor and Lord Mayor of Bradford Valerie 
Binney have been consulted and are happy with the name suggestion 

 
4. OPTIONS 
 
4.1 To name the street ‘Valerie Binney Drive”. The alternative street name suggestion 

put forward is Yarm Drive 
  
  
5. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 

N/A 
 
 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 

N/A 
 
7. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

N/A 
 
 
8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 
8.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 

N/A 
 
8.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

N/A 
 
8.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

N/A 
 
 Page 32



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 
 
 

 5

8.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
  

N/A 
 
8.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 

N/A 
 
8.6 TRADE UNION 
 
 N/A 
 
9. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
 N/A 
 
10. Recommendations 
 

To approve the proposed street name “Valerie Binney Drive” for the residential 
development 15/00326/S3 Land West of Chevet Mount Bradford 

 

Page 33



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 
 
 

 6

 
11. APPENDICES 
 

• Attached site plan 

 

Page 34



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 
 
 

 7

• Proposed Site Layout Plan 
 

•  
 

 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

N/A 
 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Assistant Director, Policy, Programmes 
and Change to the meeting of Bradford West Area 
Committee to be held on Thursday 28 January 2016 

R 
 
 

Subject:   
 
District Plan and Council Plan Development 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report provides a summary of the approach taken in the development of the 
District Plan and Council Plan, and seeks member input at the drafting stage. The 
District Plan will identify how partner organisations across the district will 
contribute to the delivery of our shared outcomes.  The Council Plan will identify the 
Council’s contribution to the District Plan.  
 

Sam Plum Assistant Director of Policy 
Programmes and Change 

Portfolio:   
 
Corporate 
 

Report Contact:  Kathryn Jones 
Phone: (01274) 433664 
E-mail: k.jones@bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Corporate 

 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 4/



1. SUMMARY 
 

This report provides a summary of the approach taken in the development of the 
District Plan and Council Plan, and seeks member input at the drafting stage. The 
District Plan will identify how partner organisations across the district will contribute 
to the delivery of our shared outcomes.  The Council Plan will identify the Council’s 
contribution to the District Plan.  

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The District Plan will outline partners’ commitment to delivery, how things will be 

done differently, working together towards shared aims.  It will not be a plan which 
simply captures ‘business as usual’ activity, and instead will focus on new ways of 
doing things through co-production and joined-up working, resulting in better use of 
resources.  This will enable both the Council and other public sector partners to 
meet the challenges of reducing budgets and increasing costs and demand. 

 
2.2 Learning taken from the development of previous district strategies has informed 

this approach.  Instead of using the plan to capture a large number of deliverables, 
the District Plan will outline the key activity which will make a real difference using 
district-wide resources.  

 
2.3 The Council Plan will identify Bradford Council’s contribution to the District Plan. It 

will also identify key actions and deliverables, along with a clear sense of how the 
Council will operate, and how progress will be measured, so as to provide 
accountability and transparency. 

 
2.4 A district Community Strategy ran from 2011-2014.  Work was started in 2013 to 

review that strategy but was put on hold awaiting the development of New Deal 
priorities. There is currently no district-wide plan in place to tie strategic partners to 
common goals. 

 
2.5 A one year Corporate Plan was agreed for 2013/14 on the basis that it captured the 

‘as is’ position of the Council, and would be reviewed once further transformation 
planning was complete.  This update is now being progressed via the development 
of the Council Plan.   

 
2.6 Since 2014 there has been a fragmented approach across the work of Strategic 

Delivery Partnerships, with a more joined-up approach to district-wide delivery 
needed.  This is especially important in the context of significant public sector 
budget reductions which have taken place in recent years and are expected to 
continue for the foreseeable future.   

 
2.7 A New Deal for the district has been developed which will change the way the 

Council and other public services work together with people, communities, 
businesses and the voluntary sector.  Effective partnership working, towards 
common goals, is critical to the successful delivery of the agreed New Deal 
outcomes. 

2.8 The Bradford District Partnership (BDP) Board agreed at its meeting on 23 October 

Page 38



2015 that a new District Plan for 2016-2020 should be developed that supports a 
shared direction, co-ordinates effort and provides accountability to support the 
delivery of the New Deal outcomes. 

 
2.9 Revised governance arrangements for Bradford District Partnership were also 

approved by the BDP Board on 23 October 2015, and partnerships have now taken 
ownership of New Deal outcomes as follows: 

 

• Good schools and a great start for all our children – Children’s Trust 

• Better skills, more good jobs and a growing economy – Producer City Board 

• Better health, better lives – Health and Wellbeing Board 

• Safe, clean and active communities – Safer and Stronger Communities 
Partnership 

• Decent homes that people can afford to live in – Producer City Board/Place 
Board 

 
2.10 The District Plan will clearly state how the Strategic Delivery Partnerships will 

commit to delivery of the New Deal outcomes by outlining detailed activity with 
specific success measures to support the monitoring and reporting of progress. The 
Council Plan will outline the Council’s commitment to the District Plan, by detailing 
the key activity the Council will undertake which will really make a difference. 

 
2.11 The development of the Plans will ensure that the council, partners, individuals, 

communities and businesses all work together towards a shared vision for the 
district. The diagram below outlines the relationship between the two Plans.  

 

PARTNERSHIP 
DELIVERY PLANS

INDIVIDUAL 
APPRAISALS

SERVICE PLANS
Council

Plan

District 
Plan

 
 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The duration of the District Plan will be 4 years, from 2016-20, with a review of 

progress made annually.  The duration of the Council Plan will be 4 years, from 
2016-20, with a review of progress made annually. 

 
Draft Plans  

3.2 A draft of the District Plan is available at Appendix 1, and a draft of the Council Plan 
is available at Appendix 2. 

Page 39



 
3.3 The purpose of the drafts is to outline the structure and main component parts of 

the Plans with initial content based on existing strategic direction and commitments.  
These current drafts are not intended as being close to the final version, and are 
provided as a means of triggering discussion and debate to ensure that the things 
that will really make a difference are identified for the final version.  The next stage 
of drafting will be undertaken and owned by senior managers and directors of the 
Council – in parallel with partners for the District Plan.  

 
3.4 As drafts, all content is open for comment and amendment, and the views of 

Members are sought, particularly in relation to: 
 

• Is there a good balance to show the council’s contribution to the district plan and 
what we can do together with others? 

• Does the content feel familiar and can you buy into it? 

• Is there a good balance to show that it is about everybody delivering and 
contributing?  What actions that will most make a difference need to be 
included? 

• Big ideas – at present this page covers the process of changing the council, but 
it could instead cover specific deliverables.  Should the Big Ideas be focussed 
on specific deliverables?  If so, what could they be? 

• Are there any good case studies we could include that show what we can 
achieve as a council? 

• How should the Council Plan deal with the New Deal principles (as they overlap 
the values somewhat)? 

• Are the measures of success the right ones for a public audience? 

• Do you think the document will work for the range of audiences across the 
district including residents, businesses, communities, public sector, City Region 
and Government? 

• Does the plan need to be more explicit about what we are offering and expecting 
from Government and City Region? 

• Taking into account that a final version would be glossier, with photos, images 
etc – does the general look/feel to the layout work? 

• Are the sections in the right order, should there be more or less up front before 
getting to the New Deal outcomes? 

• Does the text make sense, is the language correct for the audience, is it clear 
and in Plain English? 

 
Format / content of final Plans 

3.5 The District Plan will provide an introduction which summarises the district’s great 
assets and strengths, and also highlights the challenges.  There will be a statistical 
snapshot of the district today in relation to such factors as demographics, 
employment and economy. 

 
3.6 The Council Plan will outline the ‘big ideas’ which state how the Council will be 

prepared for the future, how the Council will enter into a New Deal with residents, 
and how the Council will live within its means. 

 
3.7 Each outcome will take up a two page spread, with an introduction to the outcome, 

a summary which sets the scene of where we are today in relation to that goal 

Page 40



supported by a statistical evidence base. 
 
3.8 The Council Plan will explain what activity the Council carries out across the district, 

what projects we’re currently working on, and what outcomes residents can expect 
to see when we have delivered our actions. 

 
3.9 Both Plans will outline who will undertake key activity that will really make a 

difference, when and how success will be measured. 
 
3.10 In keeping with the principles of New Deal, the Plans will not only tie the Council 

and partners to activity, but will also outline what is expected of individuals, 
communities and businesses.  This will reinforce the need for change in terms of 
what people can expect from local services, their rights and responsibilities and how 
they and other people can help by doing things differently. 

 
3.11 Each New Deal outcome two page spread will also contain case study examples of 

positive outcomes, with an emphasis on collaborative working and co-production. 
 

Consultation 
3.12 In developing the Plans on-going consultation is underway with BDP Strategic 

Partnerships, partners, Council officers and with elected Members, alongside public 
engagement. 

 
3.13 The consultation has an emphasis on capturing commitments to new ideas, 

different ways of working and activity that will really make a difference.  The Plans 
will be populated with specific actions which will support a district-wide commitment 
to the New Deal outcomes. 

 
3.14 The measurement of success against the stated aims will be achieved by using 

dashboard measures – designed to assess if the Council and partners are 
collectively achieving their ambitions and outcomes.  This approach is critical to 
ensure that commitments are monitored and measured to provide accountability to 
the delivery of activity. 

 
3.15 Public engagement has most recently included district-wide discussions in places 

such as bus stations, children’s centres and advice offices to capture the issues that 
matter to residents and their families.  This captured the views of people from all 
over the district.  A verbal update on the analysis of this work can be provided at the 
meeting.  Further ‘vox pop’ type engagement is also planned with the public in the 
next couple of months, asking more detailed questions and recording or videoing 
responses.  These questions can be tailored to each public area visited and 
Members can make suggestions of what those questions might be. Feedback from 
the first phase of New Deal engagement will also be taken into consideration when 
developing the two Plans.  

 
Dependencies 

3.16 The direction established by the ward planning process will need to be reflected in 
the District and Council Plans to ensure a geographic perspective is given and that 
the Plans are built from the bottom up.  As the 2016/17 ward plans are also 
currently in development, it is important that all drafts are shared to ensure they 
reflect and influence each other.  Area Committee are asked to consider how the 

Page 41



ward planning might best feed in to the Council and District Plans, both in their 
content and process development.   

 
3.17 Some of the other key dependencies for the District and Council Plans are the 

developing digital strategy, work around devolution, Council budget 2016/17, and 
for the District Plan in particular partner strategies. 

 
3.18 The principle dates for the development of the Plans are: 

• Consultation on drafts – December 2015 to January 2016 

• Area Committees and Overview and Scrutiny – January 2016 

• BDP Board and CMT discussions – end January 2016 

• Plans approvals – April to June 2016 
 

Next Steps 
3.19 As part of the consultation on the drafts, and production of the Plans, there will be 

follow up conversations and detailed dialogue with the Strategic Delivery 
Partnerships and individual organisations (including the Voluntary and Community 
Sector), along with officer and political input. 

 
3.20 Feedback and contributions received from the initial draft consultation will be 

analysed and included to help shape the detail of the Plans. 

 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 

The District and Council Plans will bring about a greater degree of collaboration and 
co-production resulting in a more efficient and sustainable use of resources. 

 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 

 The content of the District Plan will comprise activity which is owned by the 
Strategic Delivery Partnerships, with clear success measures governed through the 
Bradford District Partnership Board.  The governance of the Council Plan is through 
Executive and Full Council. 

 

6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

The publication of the District and Council Plans is not a statutory requirement.  
However their absence would restrict the Council and partners’ ability to deliver 
New Deal objectives, jeopardising budget savings and limiting opportunity to 
transform the district. 

 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 

Discussions have taken place and feedback gathered from different locations 
across the district in order to ensure no group of people has been disproportionately 
disadvantaged from taking part in engagement activity.  Supplemented by written 
and online consultation, this has ensured feedback has been received from a broad 
cross-section of the district.  As options, ideas and projects are identified, 

Page 42



implemented and tested, each proposal will be equality assessed at each stage of 
its development with documentation produced and made available publicly for 
transparency purposes. 

 
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The District and Council plans will be forward looking and fit for the future across 
Council, partners, communities and businesses. 

 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

There are no greenhouse gas emission impacts from the development of the 
District Plan and Council Plan. 

 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no community safety implications from the development of the District 
Plan and Council Plan. 

 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 

There are no human rights implications from the development of the District Plan 
and Council Plan. 

 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 

There are no Trade Union implications from the development of the District Plan 
and Council Plan. 

 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

Public participation activities have been taking place across the district since 
autumn 2014 to gather public views on the five outcome areas, and develop a fuller 
understanding of what is most important to people. A report summarising the 
feedback from the engagement that took place from October 2014 to March 2015 
was received by this Committee in April 2015.  Early drafts have incorporated the 
findings from this engagement, with further input to come from additional scheduled 
engagement.  
 
One of the primary dependencies of the District and Council Plans will be 
geographical implications as captured through the ward planning process.  The 
ward assessments will be analysed alongside a district wide evidence base with 
highlights captured in the final Plans.  

 
7.8 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  

 
With new ward plans being developed for the next financial year, there will also be 
an opportunity to assess their actions for any issues which consistently affect a lot 
of wards, or any big issue that could have district wide implications.  
 
This work will ensure that ensure a geographical perspective is given and that the 

Page 43



Plans are built from the bottom up. 
  
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 

 
None 

 
9. OPTIONS 
 
9.1 For Members to provide their comments on the development of the District and 

Council Plans. 
 
9.2 Members to provide their input to the public engagement activity and ward planning 

processes.  
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That Area Committee Members provide their views on the questions listed in 

section 3.4. 
 
10.2 Area Committee Members may provide suggestions of questions to ask through the 

ongoing public engagement activity (as outlined in section 3.15). 
 
10.3 That Area Committee Members comment on the key aspects of the ward plans that 

should be reflected in the Council and District Plans. 
 
10.4 Area Committee Members provide their thoughts on how the ward plans and their 

development can be more systematically connected to the Council and District 
Plans (as outlined in section 3.18). 

 
11. APPENDICES 
 

• Appendix 1 – Draft District Plan 

• Appendix 2 – Draft Council Plan 
 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
  

None 

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84


	Agenda
	1 PETITION RELATING TO TRAFFIC MATTERS ON ALTAR DRIVE
	2 OBJECTIONS RECEIVED TO THE TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER FOR WAITING RESTRICTIONS ON VARIOUS ROADS IN THE BRADFORD WEST CONSTITUENCY
	3 STREET DEDICATION TO HONOUR THE LATE FORMER COUNCILLOR AND LORD MAYOR OF BRADFORD VALERIE BINNEY
	4 DISTRICT PLAN AND COUNCIL PLAN DEVELOPMENT



